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11,059 100.00
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Signum homentum Ltd 0 | 202379729 | 163,200,000 | 126,333,120 | 157,096,320 | 93.88

09/29/2023

Quartix Financial

Products 11 Ltd 2023/9/29 | 163,200,000 | 35,398,080 8,404,800 5.02
09/29/2023
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2016 11 288,129,719 19,042 0.9480 63
2017 11 227,064,188 15,007 0.9827 65
2018 11 185,783,099 12,278 0.9739 64
2019 11 175,170,936 11,577 1.0254 68
2019 181,048,401 11,965 1.0020 66
181,261,805 11,980 1.0066 67

181,734,486 12,011 1.0130 67

181,081,149 11,968 1.0203 67

182,778,998 12,080 1.0389 69

180,157,256 11,907 1.0315 68

10 177,588,220 11,737 1.0226 68

11 175,170,936 11,577 1.0254 68

12 171,683,277 11,347 1.0181 67

2020 173,514,440 11,468 1.0326 68
169,466,374 11,200 1.0217 68

167,336,014 11,059 1.0145 67

44/202



EDINETOOOO

OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

5.20

3.66

0.90

5.29

100x

325,260,000
(325, 260,000)

21,330,000
(21,330,000)

303,930,000
(303,930,000)

0 72,870,000 231,060,000
©) (72,870,000) (231,060,000)
0 40,310,000 190,750,000
©) (40,310,000) (190,750,000)
0 19,930,000 170,820,000

©

(19,930,000)

(170,820,000)

45/202



Q

46/202

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



Q@

2015

14

47/202

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020

2018



Q@

10,000

@

48/202

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10,000

10,000



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2015 10
2017 11 2017 10 24
2017 11 2017 10 25
2019 11 2019 10 24
2019 11 2019 10 25
2020 11 2020 10 23
2020 11 2020 10 26

11
13

15

49/202



EDINETOOOO
O0000000000000oogoo0OOan(eLsoss)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

(a
(
(
(
(A
(B
(b
1,000
30
(¢
[ MFEFREN
= [ IFhE HEE HEhiEnE EFFIES EFERE
(EmE R (TR R D !
e Tk
1 HEFAEE 1

EFR#EEE
IERLT
AFPEMES

50/202



©

)

51/202

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@



(a
(b

(c

¢

(e

52/202

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

©



(

)

(

)

(

)

(

(

)

)

53/202

(

)

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

) ) )

)



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

54/202



13

(

)

2016 11 30

12

90

149

)

55/202

EDINETOOOO

OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)

11 30

(

)

90

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 10



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

90

90

56/202



10

10

10

57/202

14

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

58/202



59/202

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

129

23 103

2020 31
66.09



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15 10
2019 11 30
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
7 174,184,992 11,511,886
17 182,383,002 12,053,693
534 35
24,700 1,632 21,000 1,388
913,590 60,379 3,300,148 218,107
4,961,564 327,910 3,445,540 227,716
180,084,846 11,901,807 189,150,224 12,500,938
2,523,599 166,785 1,013,670 66,993
237,067 15,668 249,267 16,474
2,760,666 182,452 1,262,937 83,468
10 170,820,000 11,289,494 190,750,000 12,606,668
(3,221,388) (212,902)
6,504,180 429,861 358,675 23,705
13 177,324,180 11,719,355 187,887,287 12,417,471
180,084,846 11,901,807 189,150,224 12,500,938
10 170,820,000 190,750,000
13 1.0380 69 0.9849 65
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1,987,252 131,337 2,259,568 149,335
373,900 24,711 806,200 53,282
7,024 464 5,838 386
2,368,176 156,513 3,071,606 203,002
61,290 4,051 57,595 3,806
179,213 11,844 207,048 13,684
716,851 47,377 828,192 54,735
448,032 29,610 517,620 34,210
378,665 25,026 407,048 26,902
370,300 24,473 806,200 53,282
215,055 14,213 248,458 16,421
22,295 1,473 24,122 1,594
46,177 3,052 83,101 5,492
2,437,878 161,119 3,179,384 210,125
(69,702) (4,607) (107,778) (7,123)
295,215 19,511 (735,970) (48,640)

9,015,660 595,845
98,764 6,527 28,096 1,857
9,409,639 621,883 (707,874) (46,783)
9,339,937 617,276 (815, 652) (53,906)
(1,591,965) (105,213)
351,828 23,252
(1,240,137) (81,961)
9,339,937 617,276 (2,055,789) (135,867)

61/202



2017
2018

2018

2019

2019

12

11 30

11 30

EDINETOOOO
OO00o0oO00ooo00obDo00o0boO00oOoOnO(ELs33)
OOooooooooooooooooOo

15 10
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10 10

231,060,000 231,060,000 15,270,755 (1,981,251) (130,941) 184,952 12,223 229,263,701 15,152,038
(40,310,000)  (40,310,000)  (2,664,088) 989,375 65,388  (39,320,625)  (2,598,700)
(815,652) (53,906) (815,652) (53,906)
(1,240,137) (81,961) (1,240,137) (81,961)
190,750,000 190,750,000 12,606,668 (3,221,388) (212,902) 358,675 23,705 187,887,287 12,417,471

3,221,388 212,902 (3,221,388) (212,902)
190,750,000 190,750,000 12,606,668 (2,862,713) (189,197) 187,887,287 12,417,471
(19,930,000)  (19,930,000)  (1,317,174) 26,956 1,782 (19,903,044)  (1,315,392)
9,339,937 617,276 9,339,937 617,276
170,820,000 170,820,000 11,289,494 6,504,180 429,861 177,324,180 11,719,355
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15 10
2019 11 30
2019 2018
9,339,937 617,276 (815,652) (53,906)
(1,994,276) (131,802) (2,265,406) (149,721)
(373,900) (24,711) (806, 200) (53,282)
370,300 24,473 806,200 53,282
(12,200) (806) (25,831) (1,707)
7,329,861 484,431 (3,106,889) (205,334)
1,994,810 131,837 2,369,296 156,587
(295,215) (19,511) 735,970 48,640
(9,015, 660) (595,845)

19,525,143 1,290,417 38,504,781 2,544,781
19,538,939 1,291,328 38,503,158 2,544,674
(18,022,915) (1,191,134)  (42,366,043) (2,799,972)
(18,022,915) (1,191,134)  (42,366,043) (2,799,972)
1,516,024 100,194 (3,862,885) (255,298)
3,445,540 227,716 7,308,425 483,014
4,961,564 327,910 3,445,540 227,716
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 1510 (AUD)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 November 2019

Notes 30 November 30 November
2019 A8
Al AUD
ASSETS
Finaneial assets at fair value through profit or loss 817 174.184.992 -
Available-for-sale inancial assets 817 - 182.383,002
Interest recenvable - 534
Redemption fee receivable 24700 2100H
Amount due from broker 913,590 3,300,148
Cash and cash equivalents 9 4.961.564 3445540
TOTAL ASSETS 180,054, 546 189,150,224
LIABILITIES
Redemption payable 2,523,599 1,013,670
Accounts payable and acerued liabilitics & 237.067 249.267
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,760,666 1. 262,937
EQUITY
Unitholders” capital 10 170,820,000 190, 750,000
Reserves on available for sale financial assets - { 3.221.388)
Surplus 6,504, 180 358675
TOTAL EQUITY 132 177,224,180 187 887,287
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 180,084,346 189,150,224
NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE 10 170,820,000 190, 750,000
NET ASSET VALUE FER UNIT 13 AU, 0380 ALD 0,9849

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

RESTRICTED 5
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (ALL)

STATEMENT OF COMPREEHENSIVE INCOME

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

Motes 2019 2018
AUD AlD
INCOME
Interest income from performance linked notes 5 1.987.252 2,259 508
Redemption fee income 7 373,900 B0, 200
Interest meome from bank deposits T.024 3838
Total investment income 2368176 3071606
EXPENSES
Audit fee 61,290 57.595
Agent company’s fee ] 179,213 207048
Distributor’s fee ] 716,851 828,192
Investment advisor fees & 48,032 517.620
Management fee ] 3786605 407,048
Redemption fee expense 7 370,300 B, 200
Trustee and trustee’s delegate Fees & 215,055 248 458
Legal fees 22,295 24,122
Other operaling expenses 46,177 23101
Total operating expenscs 2437878 3179584
MET LOSS BEFORE INVESTMENT AND
EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES {69, T2} (107.778)
IMVESTMENT ANDY EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES
Net realized gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 295215 (735,970)
Md change in unrealised gain on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss 9,015,660 -
Net foreign exchange gain 08,764 28.0%5
2409639 (T07.874)
NET INCOME{LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 9,339,937 (#135,652)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Change in fair value of available for sale financial assets - (1,591,963
Gain on disposal - 351,828
- {1.240.137)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOMEN(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 9339937 {2055 789

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

RESTRICTED 6

87/202



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AUD)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the vear ended 30 November 2009

Reserves en
Number of available for-
units Unitholders” sale financial
outstanding capital assels Surplus Total equaty
AlD ALD ALD AUD
(Mete 10) Mote 107 {(Mede 8)
Balance at 1 December 2017 231,060,000 231,060,000 { 1,981,2513 184,052 229,263,701
Change in equity for 201%
Redemption of units (40,3 10,0000 (80,31 0,000) - ORD.3T5 {39,320,625)
Wet loss - - - {  Bl5652) {  BI5652)
Orher comprehensive loss - - {1,240,137) - (1,240,137
At 30 November 2018 1500, 750,000 1940, 750,000 { 3,221,338) 358,675 187,887,287
Effect on adoption of
International Fmancial
Reporting Standard 9 - - 3,221,388 { 3,221 .388) -
As restated 1540, 750,00 190, 750,004 - (2,862,713) 187,887,287
Change in equity for 2019
Redemption of units (19.5930,000) (15,930,000} = 26,956 {19,5903,0:44)
Met income - - - 0330037 0.330.037
AL 30 November 2019 1 700, 820,000 17708 20,004 - 6,504, 1 80 177,324, 180

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Nnancial statements.
RESTRICTED 7
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF

WINTON 15-10 (ALL)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income/{loss) for the year
Adjustments for:

Interest income

Redemption fee income

Redemption fee expensc

Deerease in acoounts payable and acerued habilities

Cash generated from/{used in) operations
Interest received

Net realised { gain)/loss on financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Net change in unrealised gain on financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss
Net cash Mlows generated from operating activitics

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments on redemption of units
Net eash flows used in financing activilies

NET INCREASENDECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the vear

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ENID OF THE YEAR

Motes

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these linancial statements.
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2019 2018
ALUD ALD
9330037 (815.652)
(1,994.276) (2,263 406)
{373,900 i 8, 200
370,300 806,200
{12,200 (25.831)
7320 861 (3, 106.859)
1994810 2,369,290
(293,213) T35,970
(9,01 5,660) -
19,525,143 38,504,781
19.538.939 38.503,158
{18.022.915) {42.366.043)
{18.022.915) {42.366.043)
1.516.024 (3.802.885)
3.445.540 T.308.425
4961564 3,445 540
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (ALY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

1. THE TRUST

Philosophic 2 Investment Trust (the “Trust™) 5 an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a
master trust deed dated 20 March 2015 under the laws of the Cayman [slands entered into between [0}
EQ Management Bermuda Limited (the “Manager™) and HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the
“Trustee™). The Manager was formerly known as Moore Management (Bearmuda) Limited and
changed its name to 1) EQ Management Bermuda Limited on 25 March 2019, The Trust has been
established as an umbrella unit trust with the ability to create and establish separate portfolio or series
trust to which assets and habihhies attributable to such senes trust will be apphied.

Bond Plus Fund Linked o the Perfformance of Windon 13-10 { AU (the “Series Trust'™) is a series
trust of the Trust constituled pursuant to the master trust deed and a supplemental trust deed dated 12
August 2005 made batween the Trustes and the Manager, As at 30 November 2019, two serics trusts
had been established,

The investment objective of the Senes Trust is to pursue capital gain over the medium to long term,
while aiming to ensure a net assel value per unit at the time of the maturity date that is not less than
100%% of the Australian Dollar (“AUD™) denominated offer price. The Manager aims 1o achieve such
investment objective by investing all of the proceeds from the issue of units in 8 vear Australian Dollar
denominated zero coupon notes (cach a “Zero Coupon Note™) issuad by Signum Momentum Limated
{the “Zero Coupon Note Issuer”™) and 8 vear Australian dollar denominated performance linked notes
{each a “Performance Linked Note™) issued by Quartix Financial Products II Limited (the
“Performance Linked Mote Issuer™). The Zero Coupon Notes seek to provide ther holders with
protection of 10026 of the Zare Coupon Notes' principal amount (in Australian Dollars) if such holders
hold their Zero Coupon Notes until the note maturity date. The ramaining net proceeds from the issue
of units, after imvestment in the Zero Coupon MNotes and pavment of certain expenses, will be nvested
in the Performance Linked Notes. Investment in the Performance Linked Notes will provide investors
with exposure to the performance of MA WOM FP Limited (the “Underlying Fund™).

The Series Trust shall terminate on the earlier of 13 Oclober 2023, or the occurrence of any of the
other termination events set out in master trust deed.

P CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

beginning 1 December 2018

The Series Trust applied, for the first time, certain standards and amendments, which are effective for
annual perieds beginning on or after 1 December 2018, A number of other new standards are also
effeetive from 1 December 2018 but they do not have a material effect on the Series Trust's financial
stalements.

RESTRICTED 9
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (ALY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES {continued)
The nature and the impact of the new standard and amendment 15 desenibed below:

Intemnational Finangial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™ 9 Financial Instruments
The Series Trust adopted IFRS 9 Financial Instruments on its effective date of 1 December 2018,

IFRS 9 replaces International Accounting Standards (“1AS™) 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement and miroduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment

and hedge accounting, [FRES 9 is not applicable to items that have already been derecognised at 1
December 2008, the date of initial application.

{a) Classification and measurement
The Series Trust has assessed the classification of financial instruments as at the date of mitial
application and has applied such classification retrospectively. Based on that asscssment:

s Dbl instruments are acquired in line with the investment objectives of the Series Trust and
any sale prior to maturity is for the purpese of funding the carly redemptions made by
investors of the Senes Trust, Thereforg, the selling of the investment s only incidental and
nol achieved either of collecting contractual cash flows alone or collecting contractual cash
flow and selling financial assets within the ordinary course of business, Thus, such
investments are measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (“FVPL™).

e Financial assets previously classified as loans and recervables are held to colleet contractual
cash flows and give rise to cash flows representing solely payments of principal and interest.
Thus, such instruments continue to be measured at amortised cost under IFRS 9,

+  The classification of financial liabilities under [FRS 9 remains broadly the same as under TAS
39. The main impact on measurement from the classification of liabilities under IFRS 9 relates
to the element of gains or losses for financial habilities designated as at FVPL attributable to
changes in credit rsk IFRS 9 requires that such element be recognised in other
comprehensive income, unless this treatment creates or enlarges an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss, n which case, all gams and losses on that halabty (mcluding the effects of
changes in credit risk) should be presented in profit or loss. The Series Trust has not
designated any financial liabilities at FVPL. Therefore, this requirement has not had an impact
on the Series Trust,

(b} Impairment
IFES 9 requires the Series Trust to record expected credit loss ("ECL™) on all of its loans and
trade receivables, either ona 12-month or lifelime basis. Given the limited exposure of the Series
Trust to credit risk. this amendment has not had a material impact on the financial statements. The
Series Trust only helds trade receivables with no financing component and which have maturitics
aof less than 12 months at amortised cost and therefore has adopled an approach similar to the
general approach to ECLs.

(¢} Hedge accounting
The Series Trust has not applied hedge accounting under TAS 39 nor will it apply hedge
accounting under IFRS 9.

RESTRICTED 10
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (ALY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES {continued)

Impact of adoption o IFRS @

The classification and measurement requirements of IFRS 9 have been adopted retrospectively as of
the date of imitial application on 1 December 2018, However, the Series Trust has chosen to take
advantage of the option nol to restate comparatives, Therelore, prior year ligures are presented and
measured under 1AS 39, The following table shows the original measurement calegories in
accordance with TAS 39 and the new measurement categones under [FRS 9 for the Senes Trust's
financial assets and financial liabilities as at 1 December 2018:

Financial assets

IAS 39 IAS 39 IFR59 IFRS 9
1 December 2018 classification measurement classification measurement
e AUD . AL
Available-for-sale Available-for- .
fmancial assets sale 182,383,002 FVPL 182,383,002
Loans and
Interest receivable receivables 534 Amortised cost 534
Redemption fee Loans and i
receivable reccivables 21000 Amortsed cost 21000
Amount due from Loans and .
broker receivables 3300148 Amortised cost 3,300,148
Cash and cash Loans and .
couivalents reccivables 3445540 Amortised cost 3445540
Financial liabilities
IAS 39 IAS 39 IFRS % IFRS 9
1 December 2018 classification measurement classification measurement
ALY AL
Cither financial
Redemption pavable liabilities LO13,6T0  Amortised cost 1013670
Accounts payable .
aid accrl Other financial
liabalities liahilitics 249267 Amortised cost 249,267

In line with the characteristics of the Series Trust’s financial instruments as well as its approach to
their management. the Serics Trust neither revoked nor made any new designations on the date of
initial application. IFRS 9 has not resulted in changes in the carrying amount of the Series Trust's
financial instruments due Lo changes in measurement categories. All financial assets that were
classified as Available-for-sale under TAS 39 are now classificd as FVPL unda IFRS 9, All financial
assels that were classificd as loans and receivables and measurad at amortised cost continue to be
measured al amorlised cosl. In addition, the application of the ECL mode under IFRS 9 has not
significantly ¢hanged the carrving amounts of the Series Trust’s amortised cost financial assets. The
carrving amounts of amortised cost instruments continued to approximate these instruments” fair
values on the date of transition afier transitioning to IFRS 9.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (ALY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES {continued)

There are no other new standards and amendments to existing standards that are effective for annual
periods beginning on 1 December 2018 that have a material effect on the financial statements of the
Series Trust.

MNew and amended standards and interprtations issued but not yel effective for the financial vear

There are no standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of
issuance of the Series Trust’s financial statements that would be expected to have a significant impact
on the Series Trust,

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AMND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Series Trust’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assels and labilitics
and the accompanying disclosuras. Uncertainty about these assumplions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could reguire a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or lability
affected in future periods,

Judgements
In the process of applying the Series Trust’s accounting policies. management has made the following
Judgements, which have the most significant ¢ffect on the amounts recognised in the fimancial
statements:

G g concern

The Series Trust’s management has made an assessment of the Senies Trust's ability o continue as a
poing concern and is satisfied that the Series Trust has the resources to continue in business for the
foresecable future, Furthermore, management is not aware of any material wncertaintics that may cast
significant doubl upon the Series Trust’s ability 1o conlinue as a going concemn. Therelore, the
financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis.

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex lax regulations and changes in tax
laws on foreign withholding tax. Given the wide range of intemational investments, differences arising
between the actual mvestment income and the assumptions made, or [ulure changs o such
assumplions, could necessilate future adjusiments 1o lax expense already recorded. The Series Trust
establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible comsequences of audits by the tax
authorities of the respective countries in which it invests. The amounts of such provisions are basad
on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax
regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation
may arise on a wide variely of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective
investment’s domicile. As the Senies Trust assesses the probability for litigation and subsequent cash
outflow with respect to taxes as remote, no contingent liability has been recognised.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (ALY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRESs as issued by the International

Accounting Standards Board (*TASBE™), and interpretations issued by Intermational Financial
Eeporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC") of the IASB. The accounting policies adopied are

consistenl with those of the previous financial vear, ofher than as dsclosed in Node 2

Rasis of .
The financial stalements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except Tor linancial assets al
fair value through profit or loss that have been measured at far value, The financial statements are
presented in Australian Dollar (“AUD™), which is also the Series Trust’s functional eurreney, and all
valugs are rounded to the nearest AUD except where otharwise indicated,

Revenue recognition
Fevenue s recognised when it 1s probable that the cconomic benelits will low to the Serics Trust and

when the revenue can be measured reliably, Interest income is recognised on a time apportioned basis
taking inte account the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable.

Finaneial instruments

(Ll IC ass ification - Policy effective from 1 December 2018 (IFRE 9)

In accordance with IFRS 9, the Series Trust classifies its financial assets and financial habilities at
initial recognition into the categorics of financial asscts and financial liabilities discussed below,

Financial assefs
The Series Trust classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost or measured
at FVPL on the basis of both:

+  The entity's business model for managing the Nnancial assels
+  The contractual cash Now charactenstics of the financial asset

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost i it is held within a business model whose ohjective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely pavments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. The Series Trust includes in this category are inferest receivable, redemption fee
receivable, amount due from broker, cash and cash equivalents.

Fincwicial assels measured at FIPL
A Tmaneial asset 1s measurad at FVPL af:

{a) Its contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of
prineipal and interest { SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding; or

(b} It is not held within a business model whose objective is cither to collect contractual cash flows,
or o both collect contractual cash flows and sell; or

(e} At mihial recogmibion, it s revocably designated as measured at FVPL when domng so eliminates
ar signilicantly reduces a measurement or recognilion inconsistency that would otherwise arise
from measuring assets or liabilitics or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases,
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 1510 (ALY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial struments (contimaed)
(LlICass iffcation - Policy effective fram | December 2018 (IFRS 9} {continued)
Financial assets measured at FVPL {continued)

The Series Trust includes in this category:

¢ Debt instruments, These include investments that are held under a business model to manage them
on a fair value basis for investment income and fair value gains,

Financial labilities

Financtal Habilittes measured ar amortised cost

This category includes all financial liabilitics, other than those measured at FVPL. The Series Trust
mcludes in thas category are redemphion pavable, accounts payable and acerued habilities,

(i) Classification - Palicy effective before | December 2008 (TAS 39

The Series Trust classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities at initial recognition into the
following categories, m accordance with [AS 39 Financiol Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

Available-for-sale

Financial assels classified as available-for-sale are intended 1o be held for an mdefinite period and
may be sold in response to changes in available cash resources arising from unit redemptions, The
Series Trust classifics its investments as “available-for-sale financial assets™,

Loans and receivables

Loans and recevables are non-dervative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are nol quoted i an active markel, The Senes Trust meludes i this category amounts relating to
interest receivable, redemption fee receivable and amount due from broker.

C-"Hrsrﬁnfm::m.’ liabilities

This category includes all financial liabilitics, other than those classified as held for trading. The Series
Trust includes in this category amounts relating o redemption pavable and accounts payvable and
acerued liabilities,

{if) Recommition

The Series Trust recognises a financial assel or Lability when, and only when, it becomes a parly to
the eontractual provisions of the instrument. Purchases or sales of Tinancial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame penerally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace
{regular way trades) are recognised on the rade date, i.c., the date that the Series Trust commils o
purchase or sell the asset.

fiieh Mnitial measurement
Finaneial assets at FVPL are imitially recorded in the statement of financial position at fair value. All
transaction costs for such instruments are recognised directly in profit or loss.

Finansial assets (other than those classified as at FVPL) are measured initially at their fair value plus

any directly attributable incremental costs of acquisition or issue.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 1510 (ALY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial mstruments (contimued)

fivd Subsequent measurement

After initial measurement. the Series Trust measures financial instruments which are classified as at
FVPL at fair value. Subsequent changes in the fair value of these financial mstruments are recorded
in “net gain or loss on financial assets and liabilities at FVPL in the statement of comprehensive
mcome, Interest and dividends carned or paid on these instruments are recorded separately in inferest
revenue or expense and dividend revenue or expense in the statement of comprehensive income.,

Financial liabilities, other than those classified as at FVPL. are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilitics are
derecognised, as well as through the amortisation process.

The effective interast method 15 a method of caleulating the amorhised cost of a financial asset or a
financial hability and of allocating the intersst income or interest expense over the relevant period.
The effeetive interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash pavments or receipis
through the expected life of the financial instrument or. when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount of the financial assel or Onaneial liability. When caleulating the effective interest
rate, the Series Trust estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instruments, but does not consider future credit losses, The caleulation includes all fees paid or
recerved between parties o the contract that are an antegral part of the cffective imterest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

fvi Derecosnition
A financial asset {or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derccognised where:

+  The rights to recerve cash flows from the asset have expired; or

*  The Series Trust has transferred its rights to recerve cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” amangement: and

+  Either {a) the Series Trust has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b} the Series Trust has neither transforred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset. but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Series Trust has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through armangeament, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset. the asset is recognised to the extent of the
Series Trust’s continuing involvement in the asset, In that case, the Series Trust also recognises an
associated labilty, The transfared assel and the associated hability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Series Trust has retained,

The Series Trust derecognises a financial liability when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expirad
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 1510 (ALY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Series Trust measures financial instruments at fair value at of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between markel participanis al the measurement date. The Fair value measurement s based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

¢ Inthe principal market for the asset or liabilitv, or
+  Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or lability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Saries Trust.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or halahity, assuming that market partiaipants act in ther economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset fakes inte account a market participant’s ability to
generale ceomomic benefits by using the assel in ils highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The fair value of financial mstruments 15 based on their quoted market prices on a recogmsed exchange
and valued at last traded price or sourced from a reputable broker or counterparty, in the case of non-
exchange traded instruments, at the reporting date without any deduction for estimated future selling
cosis,

For all other financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined by using
valuation techmiques deemed to be appropnate in the circumstances. Valuation techmiques include the
market approach (1e, wsing recent arm’s length market transachions adjusted as necessary and
reference to the current market value of another instrument that is substantially the same) and the
income approach (i,¢., discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing medels making as much use
of available and supporiable market data as possible).

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, deseribed as follows, based on the lowest level input that
15 :.-igniﬁcnnl to the Far value measurement as a whole:

«  Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted ) market prices in active markets for identical assets or habilities

+  Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indireetly observable

+  Level 3 - Valuation techmigques for which the lowest level input that s sigmficant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial slalements on a recurring basis, the Series

Trust determing whether transfers have occuwrred between levels in the higrarchy by re-assessing

categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whaole) at the end of cach reporting period.

RESTRICTED 16

97/202



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 1510 (ALY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assels

Palicy effective fram | December 2018 (IFRS 9

For financial asscts al amortised cost, impairment allowances are recognised under the general
approach where expected eredil losses are recognsed in two stages. For eredit exposures where there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Series Trust is required
to provide for eredit losses that result from possible default events within the next 12 months, For
those credit exposures where thare has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. a loss allowance is required for eredit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure irrespective of the timing of the default.

Folicy effective before T December 2018 (145 39

The Series Trust assessed at cach reporting date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets
was impaired, A fmancial assel or a group of financial assets was deemed (o be impaired if, and only
if, there was an objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that had oceurred
afler the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event had an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assct or the group of financial assets that could be
reliably estimated

Evidence of impairment might include indications that the débtor or a group of debtors was
expenencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they would enter bankruptey or other financial reorgansation and where
observable data indicated that there was a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes i arrears or cconomie conditions that correlated with defaults, IF there was objective
evidence that an impairment loss had been incurred, the amount of the loss was measured as the
difference between the asset’s camrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
{excluding future ECLs that had not vet been incurred) discounted using the asset’s onginal effective
mbarest rate, The carrying amount of the assel was reduced through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss was recognised in profit or loss as “credit loss expense’.

Foreion currency iransaciions

The Series Trust’s functional and presentation currency is the AUD. The functional currency reflects
the currency in which the Series Trust primarily genarates and expends cash from its activitics,

Transactions during the period in currencies other than the functional currency are recorded at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and labilities denominated
in foreign currencies are relranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporling period.
Realised and unrealised exchange gains or losses on foreign currency transactions are charged or
credited as profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income as net foreign exchange gains or
limses.

MNon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a forcign currency are translated
using the exchange rates as al the dates of the initial transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was

determined.
The rate of exchange in effect at 30 November 20019 was AUD1 = USDO.GTTS (2018: AUD1 =
USDO.7314)
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (ALY

HNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Eelated parties
Aparty is considered to be related to the Series Trust ift

{a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Series Trust:
(1)  has significant influence over the Senes Trust: or,
(iip 15 a member of the key management personnel of the Series Trust or of a parent of the
Series Trust:

ib)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(1) the enfity and the Series Trust are members of the same group;

{ii})  oneentily is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity):

(iii) the entity and the Series Trust are joint ventueres of the same third party:

(iv) oneentity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third
enlity:

(v}  the entity is a post-cmployment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
Series Trust or an entity related (o the Series Trust;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a):

(vii) a person identified in {a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or & a member of the
kev management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and,

(viii) the entity, or any member of the Series Trust of which it is a parl, provides key
management persennel services to the Series Trust,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defimed as cash at bank, cash on hand, time deposits, and short-term
highly liguid imvestments readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject 1o insignificant
risk of changes in value. Cash at bank is carried al cost.

Cash and cash equivalents denominated m other currency are translated into AU at the appheable
rale of exchange at the reporting date.

Far the purpose of The stalement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank.

Unithelders” capital
Redeemable units are classified as equity instruments when:

¢ The redeemable units entitle the holder o a pro rata share of the Series Trust’s net assets in
the event of the Series Trust™s liquidation.

¢ Theredeemable units are in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of
mstruments,

¢  The redeemable units in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of
instruments have identical features.

+  The redesmable units do not melude any contractual obligation to deliver cash or another
financial asset other than the holder’s rights to a pro rata share of the Series Trust’s net assets.

RESTRICTED 18

99/202



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 1510 (ALY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Unitholders” capital {continued)

+  The total expected cash flows attributable to the redesmable units over the life of the
instrument are based substantially on the profit or loss, the change in the recognised net assels
or the change in the fair value of the recognised and unrecognised net assets of the Series
Trust over the life of the instrument.

In addition to the redeemable units having all the above features, the Senes Trust must have no other
financial instrument or contract that has:
+«  Total cash fows based substantially on the profit or loss, the change in the recognised net
assels or the change in the fair value of the recognised and unrecognised net assels of the
Series Trust, and,
¢ The effect of substantially restricting or fixing the residual return to the mstrument holders.

The Series Trust continuously assesses the classification of the redeemable participating units. If the
redeemable participating unils cease to have all the features or meet all the conditions set oul 1o be
classified as equity. the Series Trust will reclassify them as financial liabilities and measure them at
fair value at the date of reclassification, with any differences from the previous carrving amount
recognised in equity. [Nhe redesmable units subsequently have all the features and meet the conditions
to be classified as equity, the Series Trust will reclassify them as equily instruments and measure them
at the carrying amount of the liabilities at the date of the reclassification,

The issuance, acquisition, and cancellation of the redeemable participating units are accounted for as
equily transactions. Upon issuance of unils, the consideration received is included in equity.

Mo gain or loss 15 recognised in the statement of comprehensive mcome on the purchase, sale,
issuance, redemption, or cancellation of the Series Trust’s own equity instruments.

Pronasion for fulure expenses for the Sernes Trust

As provided for within the Offering Memorandum (the “Offering Memorandum™), upon its
establishment, the Series Trust has provided for certain fees, including administration fees, audit fees,
and other operating expenses, payable to serviee providers for the term of the Series Trust as
determined by the Manager, This up-front provision of fess 15 ntended to ensure thal continuing
investors are not disadvantaged when redemptions occur leaving them with a disproportionate share
of these costs which were committed at the launch of the Serics Trust, These provisions have been
fully reflected in the nat assel value published during the current aceounting period.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with [IFRS. Certain of these provisions represent
provisions for expenses relating lo services that will be provided to the Series Trust over its life and
therefore are required to be recognised over the life of the Series Trust in the period that they relate to
in accordance with IFRSs.

Therefore. where these provisions relate to expenses lo be incurred in future periods, these have been
exchuded from the statement of comprehens ve income and the statement of financial position, As the
exehsion of these provisions in the statement of comprehensive income and statement of financial
position results in a difference in comparison to the published net asset value for the reasons stated
above, a reconciliation has been provided in Note 13 to the financial statements.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (ALY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Met gain or loss on financial assets and liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss
MNet gains or losses on financial assets at FVPL are changes in the fair value of financial assets

designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL and exclude interest income,

Unrealised gains and losses comprise changes in the fair value of financial instruments for the period
and from reversal of the prnor penod’s unrealised gains and losses for financial instruments which
were realised in the reporting period.

Realised gains and losses on disposals of financial instruments classified as at fair value through profit
or loss are caleulated using the weighted average mathod. They represemt the difference between an
instrument’s initial carrying amount and disposal amount.

3, INTEREST INCOME FROM PERFORMANCE LINKED NOTES

Pursuant to Appendix 2 of the Offering Memorandum the holders, payments to the holders of the
Performance Linked Notes will oceur on the first Business Day [alling on or prioe to the 15th calendar
day of each month and the last Business Day of each month from 30 October 2015 to the Note Maturity
Drate in arrcar at the rate of 0.895% per annum on the Principal Amount of the Paformance Linked
Motes plus an additional amount of 0.30% per annum of that portion of the Principal Amount of the
Performance Linked Notes which s equal 1o or less than AU 00,000,000 and 0.10% per annum of
that  portien of the Principal Amount of the Performance Linked Notes which excecds
AL 100,000,000,

The interest income from performance linked notes for the vear totalled AUDD987,252 (2018:
A2 259, 568).

. FEES

Trustee and trustee’s delegate fees

The Trustes and the Trustes™s Delegate are entitled to receive a tustee fee of 0, 12% per annum of the
offer price multipliad by the number of units eutstanding (the *“Fee Amount™) acerued and caleulated
on each valuation day and pavable monthly in arrears, subject to a minimum quarlerly fee of
AUD0,000, The Trustee and the Trustee’s Delegate will be entitled to receive transaction and
processing fees at normal commercial rates. Furtharmore, the Trustee will be entitled to receive an
inceplion fee of AUDS.000 pavable as soon as possible after the initial elosing date. For the custody
of the Trust’s assets, the Trustee and the Trustee's Delegate will also be entitled to receive a custodian
fee of 0.025% per annum of the assets under custody, acerued and caleulated as at each valuation day
and pavable monthly in arrears.

The trustes and trustee’s delegate fees for the year tolalled AUD215,055 (20018: AUD248.458) of
which AUTIN9,850 was pavable at 30 November 20019 (201 %: AUD22,034) and & meluded in accounts
payable and acerued liabilities.
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For the vear ended 30 November 2019

[} FEES {contimued )

0 ) ]
Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities Co., Ltd (the “Agent Company and Distributor™) is entitled
Lo receive a fee of 0L10% per annum of the Fee Amount acerued and caleulated as at each valuation
day and pavable monthly in armears,

The agent company™s fee for the vear lotaled AUDITR213 (2018: AUD20T04%8) of which
AUD16.542 was payable at 30 November 2019 (2018: AUD18.362) and is included in accounts
payable and acerued liabilities,

Distributor’s fee
The Agent Company and Distributor s also entitled Lo receive a distributor fee of 0.40% per annum
of the Fee Amount accrued and caleulated as at each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears,

The distributor’s fec for the year totaled AUDT16,8531 (2018: AUDE28.192) of which AUDGG, 166
was pavable at 30 November 2019 (2018: AUDT3.447) and is included in accounts payable and
acerued liabilities,

Management fee
The Manager is entitled to receive a management fee of 0.30% per annum of that part of the Fee

Amount which is equal to or less than AUD100,000,000 and 0. 10% per annum of that part of the Fee
Amount which 15 greater than AUD100.000,000 accrued and caleulated on cach valuation day,
payable monthly in arrears and subject to a minimum annual fee of AUD20,000. The Manager will
also be entitled to receive oul of the assets of the Series Trust an inception fee of USDG0000 payable
as soon as possible afler the imitial closing date,

The management fee for the vear totaled AUDETE G635 (2018: AUD40T048) of which AUD3S.720
was pavable at 30 November 2019 (2018; AUDST, 5400 and is included in accounts pavable and
acerued labilities,

Mitsubishi UFY Kokusai Asset Management Co., Lid. (the “Investment Advisor™)is entitled to receive
a fee of 0.25% per annum of the Fee Amount acerued and caleulated as at each valuation day and
payable monthly in arrears.

The investment advisor fee for the vear tedaled AUDS48.032 (20018 AUDS17.620) of which
AUD41.334 was payable at 30 November 2019 (2018: AUD45.904) and is included in accounts
pavable and acerued liabalities.,
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (ALY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

7. EEDEMPTION FEES

REedemplion fee income

Pursuant to Appendix 2 of the Offering Memorandum, the Manager may deduet from the repurchase
proceeds payable in respect of cach unit repurchased a repurchase fee for the account of the Scrics
Trust caleulated in accordance with the following sliding scale:

- From the commencement of the Series Trust to, and ncluding, the first business day
in Movember 2007, this fee shall be 3% of an amount caleulated by multiplying the
number of unils being repurchased by the ofler price.

. From and including the day following the first business day of November 2017 to, and
including the first business day in November 2009, this fee shall be 2% of an amount
caleulated by multiplying the number of units being repurchased by the offer price.

- From and including the day following the first business day in Movember 2019 to, and
including the first business day in November 2020, this fee shall be 1% of an amount
caleulated by multiplying the number of units being repurchased by the offer price.

- Adter the first business day in Movember 2020, no repurchase fee will be charged.

Eedemption foe expense
Pursuant to the note terms for the Performance Linked Note, the Parformance Linked Note Issuer will
charge an early redemption fee in accordance with a shiding scale:

. Froan and meluding the issue date (20 Oct 2015) of the Performance Linked Note to
and including the last busingss day m Cctober 20017 this fee shall be 3% of the principal
amount to be redeemed as of the relevant secondary market trade date

. From and excluding last business dav in October 2017 to, and including the last
busingss day in October 2009, this fee shall be 2% of the principal amount o be
redeemed as of the relevant secondary market trade date.

- From and excluding the last busimess day in October 2009 to, and including the last
business day in October 2020, this fee shall be 1% of the principal amount to be
redeemed as of the relevant secondary markel trade date.

* Thereaftar, no carly redemption fee will be charged.

With regards o repurchase of units and note trades around the year end date, the trade date of the
Performance Linked Note being the 13th of October and the repurchase date of the units being the
12th of October, the accrual of the redemption fee expense and that of the redemption fee income are
recognised in different financial pariods. Consequently, redemplion fee receivable and redemption fee
payable are recognised for the unsettled repurchase of units and note trades, respectively, as at the end
of the reporting period.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (ALY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

3 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2019 2018
ALL AL
Financial assets at FVPL (2018: Available-for-sale financial 168,390,720 185,004,390
assels), at cost
Unrealised gain/{ loss) 5,794,272 ( 3,221.388)
Financial assets at FVPL (2018: Available-for-zale financial
assets), at fair value 174,184,992 182,383,002

The Parformance Linked Note is linked to the performance of the Underlving Fund. The return from
the Performance Linked Note will be determined by reference to the value of a notional investment in
the Underlying Fund. The Performance Linked Note has been ssued by the Performance Linked Note
Issuer with a maturity date of 29 September 2023,

The pavment by the Zero Coupon Note Issuer of the redemplion amount of the Zero Coupon Note at
scheduled maturity date is secured by a swap, under which the Zero Coupon MNote [ssuer pays the issue
proceeds of the Zere Coupon Mole to swap counterparty on the issue date and receives from swap
counterparty the scheduled redemption price multiplied by the principal amount on scheduled materity
date. The Zero Coupon Note will be redeemed on their scheduled maturity date on 29 September 2023
at 10Pa of their principal amount,

The breakdown of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is as follows:

Hnldingi Far value %o ol net
As at 30 November 2019 ALD assels
Zero Coupon Nole 169,920,000 162,205,632 91.47%
Performanee Linked MNote 169,920,000 11979360 65.76%
Total 174,184,992 O98.23%

Holdings Fair value % ol net
As at 30 November 2018 ALD assets
Zero Coupon Note 187,290,000 163,579,086 37.06%
Performanee Linked Mote 187,240,000 18,803,916 10.01%
Total 182,383,002 G97.07%

9, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at 30 November 2019, the cash at bank of AUD4.96 1564 (2018: AUDSZ 445,540) represented an
AU deposit of AUDZT0LE56 (2018: AUD2.213.560), a United States Dollar {“USD™) deposit of
USDA59,039 (2018: USD391,321). a Great Britain Pound (“GBP”) deposit of GBP49,059 (2018:
GRP49.006) and a non interest bearing Japanesse Yen (“TPY™) deposit of JPY47,189.605 (2018:
JPW50,692,217). All deposits were placed with The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited (“HSBC"), an affiliated company of the Trustee,
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF

WINTON 15-10 (ALY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

1,

11.

UNITHOLDERS® CAPITAL

Subscriptions

Druring the Initial Offer Period. Units may be subseribed for by Eligible Investors at the Offer Price
per Unit. The Initial Offer Peried will commence on 31 August 2015 and will close on 7 October 2015
{the "Initial Offer Period"). Units subseribed for during the Initial Offer Period will be issued on the
Initial Closing Date. The Manager may determine to terminate the initial oftfer of Units for any reason,

Following the expiration of the Initial Offer Period, Units will not be available for subscription,

Redemprions

Units mav be submitted for repurchase at the option of Unitholders on cach Repurchase Day, which
is each Dealing Day and/or such other day or days as the Manager (in consultation with the Trustee)
may in any particular case determine, up to and including the Final Repurchase Day.

The minmmum number of Units that may be submitted for repurchase as at any Kepurchase Day by
any Unitholder is 10,000 Units, with amounts in exeess thereof being in integral multiples of 10,000
or such other amounts as the Manager may determine.

014 2018
AL ALD
Ulmits in 1ssue;
170 820,000 (200 8: 1907500007 units of AUT.O0
cach 1 70,820,000 151, 750,000

Mumber of wnits  Number of units
Mumber of issued and fully paid units;
At beginning of the year 140, 750,000 231060000
Redeemed during the vear { 19930,0000  ( 40.310,000)

Al e of the year 170, 820,000 1540, T30 (M0

TAXATION

Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands, the Trust amd the Series Trust will not be liable for any
profils or capital gains tax in the Cayman Tslands.

The Trust has received an undertaking from the Govemnor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands in
accordance with Section 81 of the Trusts Law (2011 Revision) of the Cayman Islands that, for a pariod
of 50 VeEars from the date of the creation of the Trust, any !ugiﬁl:lliun enacled m the Cayman Islands
imposing tax computed on profits or income, or computed on capital assets, gains or appreciation or
any tax in the nature of estate duty or inheritance tax shall not be applicable to the Trust,

Income from other jurisdictions, including distributions froem securities ssued in other countries, may
be subject to withholding or capital gain taxes mposed by such countries. Withholding taxes on the
foreign income may be withheld in accordance with the applicable country’s tax rates,
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF

WINTON 15-10 (ALL)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

12, DISTRIBUTION

Mo distribution was paid or pavable during the vear ended 30 November 2009 (2018: Mil).

13, RECOMNCILIATION BETWEEN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS PER THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND PUBLISHED NET ASSET VALUE

Met assets attributable to unitholders per financial

statements

Adjustment to provisions (see {a) below)
Net assets used for caleulating published net asset value

per unit as at the reporting date

Published number of units in 1ssue

Published net asset value per unit in issue (see (b) below)

Met asset value per unit in issue (see(c) below)

2019 2018
AlD ALD

177,324,180 187,887,287

2153.244)  ( 2104.188)

175,170,936 185,783,099

170,820,000 1400, 750,000

AUDLO254 ALUTHLGTI9

ALD0380 ALDH), 9849

{a) The published net asset value per unit issued is caleulated in accordance with the Offering
Memorandum and includes a provision for the audit fee, legal fee and other operating eopenses
throughout the intended life of the Series Trust, instead of those amounts being expensed in the
period they relate to, as required under IFRS.

(b} The caleulation of published net asset value per unit of AUDD0254 (2008:; AUDDST39) 15 based
on the net asset value of AUDIT5. 170,930 (2018: AUD1E5.783,099) and on the total number of
170,820,000 wnits 1ssued at 30 November 20019 (2018 190,750,000},

{¢) The caleulation of net asset value attributable o unitholders per the linancial statements per unit
of AUDLOZS0 (2018 AUDLSE4D) 15 based on the net asset value of AUDTT324,180 (20138:
ALUDIET. 887, 287) and on the total number of 170,820,000 units issued at 30 November 2019

(2018: 190.750,000).

RESTRICTED

25

106/202



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (ALY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

14. FINAMNCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES

her linanaal instruments

The Sertes Trust's investing activities expose it Lo various ypes of risk which are associated with the
financial instruments in which it invests. The most important types of financial risk to which the Series
Trust 15 exposed are market nisk, eredit nsk, and houidity nisk. Marke nisk mcludes foreign currency
risk, price risk and inferest rate risk.

The investment mana gement policy of the Series Trust is determined through the following process:
The Manager provides non-discretionary management of the Series Trust’s assets and primarily will
emsure investments are consistent with the investment objectives of the Series Trust and s responsible
for taking reasonable steps and exercising all due diligence to avoid the property of the Series Trust
bemng wsed or mvested contrary 1o the ivestment and borrowing limitations set oul i the Trost Dieed
and the Offering Memorandum. The Board of the Manager has overall responsibility for the
management of the Sarics Trust structurs to the extent of its responsibilitics as detailed in the relevant
Trust Deed and Offering Memorandum,

The investiment management policy is non=discretionary; the Series Trust will invest its assels on a
1:1 basis between the Zero Coupon Note and the Performance Linked Note (collectively the “Notes"),
Consequently, the return under the Series Trust depends on the performance of the Performance
Linked Note and the Zero Coupon MNote. The relurn under the Parformance Linked Note depends on
a return linked to that of the Underlying Fund. the operating and financial performance of the
Performance Linked Mote Issuer and other factors which might affect the price of the Performance
Linked Note. The return under the Zero Coupon Note depends on the fluctuation of Austealian dollars
vield curve, the operating and financial performance of the Zero Coupon MNote Isswer, and the other
factors which might affect the price of the Zero Coupon Note,

The nature and extent of the financial instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period and
the risk management policics emploved by the Saie Trust are discussed below,

(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of financial assets will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices whether those chan ges are caused by factors specific to the individual assels or factors affecting
all assets in the market,

The Series Trust is exposed to market risk on its invesiments as the redemption value of the
Performance Linked Note is linked to predetermined rules to that of the Underlying Fund, and,

therelore, the volatility of the portfolio. This risk 15 mitigated in part by the Zao Coupon Nots being
redeemed on their scheduled maturity date of 29 September 2023 at 100% of their principal amount.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF

WINTON 15-10 (ALLY)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

14, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {continued)
(a) Market risk {continued)
The portfolio of the Underlying Fund comprised the following margin allocation (unaudited):
Market Sector %N % Margin

2019 2018

Base Metals 9.6% 14.1%
Bonids 15.9% 4.1%
Crops 6.5 11.3%
Currenzies 14.3% 24.5%
Energies 0.3% 22.3%
Equity Indices 19. 2% 1.2%
Livestock 1.1% 1.2%
Precious Metals 16, 4% 11.8%
Rates 7.3% 3.5%
Total L0 0% 100.0%
{1} Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency nisk is the risk that the value of financial asses or labilities will fluctuate due to
changes n foreign exchange rates, Units issued by the Series Trust are denomimated m Australian
dollars and umits are only issued and redeemed in that currency, The majonity of the assels of the Series
Trust are invested in the Notes which are denominated in Australian dollars.
The Series Trust is exposed to foreign currency risk to the extent that the Performance Linked Note
has exposure to currency risk as the Underlving Fund to which they are linked will reflect the
component investments which are traded in currencies other than Australian dollars. Accordingly, the
value of the portfolio and, therefore, the value of the Performance Linked Note may be afTected
faverably or unfavorably by Muciuations in currency rales.
At 30 November 2009 and 2018, the Series Trust also has exposure fo currency risk because it has
assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the AUD.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (ALY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

14, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)
i) Foreign cirrency risk {continied)
The Series Trust's currency exposure of net assets was as follows:

Analysis of assels and labilities by cumrency (totals presented in AUTY based on 30 November 20019

and 2018 eochange rates);
As at 30 November 2019 IPY Ush GBP ALD Tatal
AL
Assels
Finaneial assets at Fair value
through profit or loss - - - 174,184,992 174,184,992
Redemption fee receivable - - - 24,700 24,700
Amount due from broker - - - 913,590 D13.590
Cash and cash equivalents 636,213 520047 93548 3.701.856 4.961.564
Tutal assets 636213 529947 93,548 178,825,138 180,084,846
Liahilities
Redemption payable - - - 2,523,599 2,523,599
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilitics - 57436 - 179.631 237067
Tatal habilities - 7,436 - 2,703,230 2,760,666
Ml currency exposure 636,213 472,511 93,548 176,121,908 177,324,180
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (ALY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

14.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Market risk {continued)

{1} Foreign currency risk {confinwed)

As at 30 November 2018 IPY UsD GBP AUD Total
AUD
Assels
Financial asscts at fair value
through profit or loss - - - 182,383,002 182 383,002
Interest receivable - 404 7 123 534
Fedemption fee receivable - - . 21.000 21,000
Amount due from broker - - . 3,300,148 3,300,148
Cash and cash equivalents 611,262 335067 85,651 2,213,560 3,445,540
Total assets 611,262 535471 BS,658 187,917,833 189, 150,224
Liahbilities
Redemption payable - - - 1.013,670 LO13.6T0
Accounts payable and accrued
Labilities - 51,980 - 197287 249,267
Total liabilitics - 51,980 - 1,210,957 1,262,937
Net currency exposure 611,262 483,401 85,658 186,706,876 187,887 287
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (ALY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

14.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)
{1} Foreign currency risk {confinwed)

Sensitivity analysis

A 10% strengthening of the AU agamst the following currencies at 30 November 2009 and 2018
would have decreased/{increased) net assets by the amounts shown below. This sensitivily analysis

represents management’s best estimate of a reasonable possible change and assumes that all other
variables, i particular nterest rates, remain constant,

Met Assets Met Asscts

219 2018

ALD ALD

TPY 63,021 61,126
USD 47,251 48,3459
GBP Q355 5566

A 10 weakening of the AUD against the above currencics at 30 November 2019 and 2018 would
have had the equal but ::[rp::.-i:ih: elfect on the above currencies o the amounts shown above, on the
basiz that all other variables remain constant.

Those investors whose financial assets are measured in currencies other than the Australian dollars
will be exposed to (Tuetuations in foreign exchange rates. Even when the net asset value of unils of
the Series Trust is greater than the principal initially invested in Australian dollars, the net asset value
may have decreased in terms of the investors” currencies,

(i) Price risk

Price risk arises mainly from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held, which are
classified as “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss™ It represents the potential loss the
Series Trust might suffer through holding market positions in the (ace of price movements,

Invistments m the Motes are valued at the close of cach valuation day at a price provided by the
Caleulation Agent. For the purpose of the published Net Asset Value, the price provided by the
Caleulation Agent is treated as conclusive by the Manager. the Trustee, and the Trustee’s Delegate.

Price risk of the Series Trust arises from price flucteations of the Performance Linked Note, These
price fluctuations arise as a result of changes in the volatility of the managed commodities futures
which will have an effect on the value of the predetermined rules to that of the Underlving Fund.
These fluctuations will be reflected in the price of the Performance Linked Note and will affect the
Serics Trust's net assct valuc,
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (ALY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

14, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {continued)

(@) Market risk {continued)
(i) Price risk {continued)

The return on the units depends on changes i values of a portfolio meluding the Underlying Fund.
The trading price of the units may vary considerably before the maturity date due, among other things,
to fluctuations in the price of the managed commodities futures that make up the Underlying Fund and
other events. The units are not equivalent to investing directly in the Underlving Fund.

A 1% increase in the managed commodities futures fund at 30 November 2019 and 2018, with all
other variables held constant, will increase the Series Trust’s net asset value and profits by
approcomately AUDE 386 (2018 AUDTESM). A 1% decrease in the managed commaodibies fulures
fund at 30 MNearember 20019 and 2018, with all other vanables held constant, will decrease the Senes
Trust's net asset value and profits by approximately AUDS 386 (2018; AUD1E,804). This sensitivity
analysis represents management’s best estimate of a reasonable possible change.

Some limitations of sensitivity analysis are:

s the market price risk information is a relative estimate of risk rather than a precise and accurate
number;

» the marke price mformation represents a hypothebical outeome and 15 not tended o be
predictive; and,

+  future market conditions can vary significantly from those expenienced in the past,

{iif) fnterest rate risk

Interest rate risk s the risk that the value of financial instruments and future cash Mows will Muctuate
as a result of changes in market interest rates.

A 1% inerease in the Australian dollar vield curve at 30 November 2019 and 2018, with all other
variables held constant, will decrease the Series Trust’s financial assets al fair value through profit or
loss and consequently the net asset value and profits by approcimately AUDG,001 608 (2018;
AUDITLI23.3T8) A 1% decrease in the Auvstralian dollar yield curve at 30 November 2019 and 2018,
with all other variables held constant, will increase the Series Trusts net asset value by approximately
AUDG001,608 (2018: AUDIL123,378). This sensitivity analysis represents management’s best

estimate of a reasonable pﬂi!i'i.hl'.‘: change.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (ALY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

14. FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {continucd)

(@) Market risk {continued)
(i) Tnterest rate risk feontinued)

The Series Trust 15 exposed to inferest rate nsk on s cash and cash equivalents, which are placed n
interest bearing accounts, The amount of cash amd cash equivalents held at 30 November 2019
amounts to 2.80% (2018: 1.83%) of the Serics Trust’s net asset value, The sensitivity to changes in
interest rates on these amounts and their consequent impact of the Series Trust’s net asset value is
considerad not to be material. It 15 not the policy of the Series Trust to retain cash except to cover
anticipated costs, however the cash pesition at the reporting date includes amounts held to pay short
term repurchases, The sensitivity toa 1% (2018: 1%) movement in the Australian dollar and US dollar
mbarest rates at 31 July 2009 15 highly unhikely to result in a sigmficant ierease inointerest earned on
cash held and management have assessed that any potential increase or decrease in the Series Trust's
total asscts and profit s not considered to be material, This sensitivity analvsis represents
management’s best estimate of a reasonable possible change.

(b Credit risk

Credit risk arises from financial mstruments, cash and cash equivalents and deposits with financial
institutions and banks. The Series Trust s subject 1o a significant concentration of eredit risk as il is
exposed to financial instruments issued by a single institution and maintains cash and cash equivalents
with a single bank,

Credit risk relates to the extent to which failures by counterpartics to discharge their obligations could

reduce the amount of future cash flows from Dnancial instruments on hand as at the reporting date.

The ability to manage the credit risk s limited as a result of the Series Trust’s stated investment
objectives which require that it imvests en a 1:1 basis between a Zere Coupon Note issued by Signem
Momentum Limited and Performance Linked Note issued by Quartix Financial Products 1T Limited
and its cash and cash equivalents are placed with the Series Trust’s Trustee and its affiliated entitics
within the Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Group. In addition, the Calculation Agent
of the Note is Goldman Sachs International. This eredit risk is managed on the basis that these financial
institutions and banks are independently rated with a minimum rating of *A” or ils equivalenl.

Credit nisk disclosures are segmented mio two sections based on whether the underlyving financial
instrument is subjeet to IFRS 9°s impairment disclosures or nol.

Financial assets subfect fo IFRS 95 impairment requirements

The Series Trust’s financial assets subjeet to the expected credit loss model within IFRS 9 are only
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Al 30 November 2019, the total of receivables and
cash and cash equivalents was AUDS.90 million, on which no loss allowance had been provided (30
Movember 2001%: total of AUDGTT million on which no loss had been mewrred). There 15 not
considered to be any concentration of credit risk within these assets. Mo assets are considered impaired
and no amounts have been written of fin the period. As only receivables and cash and cash equivalents
arg impacted by the [FRS 9 ECL model the Series Trust has adopted the general approach.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (ALY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

14. FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISk MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {contimued)

(b Credit risk (continued)

Financial assets not subject to IFRE 9's impairment requeivernents

The Series Trust s exposed to credit nsk onoits financial instruments. These classes of financial assets
are not subject to IFRS 9°s impairment requirements as they are measured at FVPL. The carrying value
of these assets, under both LAS 39 (2018) and IFRS 9 (2019) represents the Series Trust’s maximum
exposure to credit risk on financial instruments not subject to the IFRS 9 impairment requirements on
the respective reporting dates. Hence, no separale maximum exposure o eredit risk disclosure is
provided for these instruments.

On 4 March 2020, the Caleulation Agent was raled BEB+/ 42 by 5 & P Global Ratings™, A3/P<2 by
Moody's and AF1 by Fitch Ratings. In addition, the Series Trust’s cash and cash equivalents are
placed with The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited. which was rated at AA-/A-
1+ by & & P Global Ratings” and Aa3/P-1 by Moody's on 4 March 2020, The Performance Linked
Notes Issuer and Zero Coupon Notes Issuer are nol rated.

(¢}  Ligquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Series Trust will encounter difficulty in raising funds o meet
commitments associated with financial assets. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a
financial assel quickly al an amount elose Lo its Far value,

Under the terms of the offering. the Series Trust’s unitholders may request for their units to be
repurchased on each repurchase day of the Series Trust. The Manager will then redeem a proportion
of the Wotes held by the Series Trust to fund the unit repurchase. The Notes can be sold belore their
maturity date at close to their fair value by the provision of one month’s notice. The redemption terms
for the underlying Motes are paud to the unitholders within twenty-three business days from the
corresponding repurchase day, thus allowing settlement from the partial sale of the Notes to be settled
before the redemption proceeds are due to be paid to the unitholders. The Series Trust is exposed to
liquidity risk as the Notes in which the Saries Trust invests may not allow the Saries Trust to redeem
its unils readily.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (ALY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

14, FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {eontinued)
(€} Liguidity risk (continued)
A summary of the analyses is as follows:

1 month to 3 months

Less than less tham 3 o lms  More than 1
As at 30 November 2019 1 month months  than 1 year year Total
AUD ALD ALD ALD AUD
Asspls:
Financial assets at fair
value through profit or
liss 174,184 902 - - = 174,184,992
Redemption fee receivable 24,700 - - - 24,700
Amount due from broker Q13,590 - - - 913,590
Cash and cash equivalents 4.961.564 - - - 4,961,504
Total assets 180,084, 846 - - - 180,084,846
Liabilities:
Redemphion payable 2,523 500 - - - 2,523,599
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilitics 237067 - - - 237067
Total liabilities 2,760 660 - - - 2,760, 6t
1 month to 3 maonths
Lezs than less than 3 to less than  More than 1
s at 30 Movember 2018 1 month months 1 year year Total
ALD AL ALD ALTD ALD
Assets:
Financial assets at far
value through profit or
loss 182 353,002 - - = 182385002
Interest receivable - 534 - - 334
Redemption fee receivable 21,000 - - - 21,000
Amount due from broker 3300, 148 - - - 3300, 148
Cash and cash equivalents 3445540 - - - 3,445,540
Total assets 189,149,690 534 - - 189,150,224
Liabilities:
Redemption pavable 1.013.670 - - - 1013670
Accounts payable and
acerued liabilitics 249,267 - - - 249067
Total liabilitics 1,262,937 - - - 1,262,937
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (ALY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

15, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Manager considers the capital of the Series Trust to comprise the net proceeds from subscriptions
for and redemptions of units of the Series Trust

The Series Trust invests virually all of ils assets in accordance with the investment ohjective (which
was stated in Note 1) of the Series Trust and the investment management policy is non-discretionary.

There are no regulatory or statutory capital requirements o which the Series Trust must comply with,

16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Manager is responsible under the Amended and Restated Master Trust Dieed for the management
of the wvestment and re-investment of the assels of the Senes Trust, the exercse of the power o
borrow monay in respect of the Series Trust, declare and direct the Trustee to make distributions or
interim distributions to the unitholders out of the income and'or the capital of the Series Trust and for
the 1ssue and repurchase of units of the Series Trust.

The Trustee is responsible under the Amended and Restated Master Trust Deed for the administration
of the Series Trust and for keeping the register of unitholders,

Al the related parties are entitled to receive fess and expenses oul of the assets of the Series Trust
Details of these fees are set out in Note 6 to the financial statements.

17. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

The level in the far value hierarchy within which the far value measurement 15 calegonsed i ils
entirety should be determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair
value measurement in s cnt:in:t}'. If a fair value measurement uses observable 1'.11|1u15 thai r::quin:
significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a level 3 measurement.
Asscssing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in ifs entirddy reguines
Judament, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes “observable” requires significant judgment by the Manager, The
Manager considers ohsavable data to be market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or
updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively
involved in the relevant market.

The Series Trust’s financial assets are not quoted in active markets, such as the performance linked
nuies. Fair values of such assets are determined by the Caleulation Agent using valuation models in
aceordance with the term sheets. Such models are not based entirely on observable data as a resull the
Series Trust's finaneial assets areall elassified within level 3. Atableshowing the split of the unguoted
investments between level 1. level 2 and level 3 has not been included as the financial assets are all
classified as level 3,

RESTRICTED i5
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF

WINTON 15-10 (ALY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

17. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION {continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the vear ended 30 November 2019
and 2018, There were no transfors into or out of the level 3 measurement during the vear,
30 November 2019 AL
Balance as at 1 December 2018 182,383,002
Disposals during the vear:

Proceeds from sale [ 17.508.885)

Met realised gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 295215
Met change m unrealsed gain on financial assets at far value

through profit or loss 9,01 5,660
Balance at 30 November 2019 174,184,902
Total gain for the period included in profit or loss for

assets held at the end of the reporting period Q310,875

November 2018 ALY
Balance as at 1 December 2017 225699179
Dhsposals during the vear:

Proceeds from sale [ 39340.070)

Met realised loss on sale of available-for-sale financial assets [ T33,970)
Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets { L391.965)
Reclassification adjustment for gains included in the statement of

comprehensive meome:

Crain on disposal 351828
Balance at 30 November 2018 182,383,002
Tuotal loss for the period included in profit or loss for

assets held at the end of the reporting period { 735970
RESTRICTEL ih
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INWVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (ALY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2019

18, EVENTS AFTER THE REPORETING DATE

Subsequent to the reporting date and up to the date of approval of these financial statements, 3,880,000
redeemable units in a total redemption amount of AUDG032,195 were redeemed from the Series
Trust. There were no other material events to be disclosed.

19, APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Trustee and Manager on 8
April 2020,

RESTRICTED i7
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2020
170,350,110.20 11,258,439
3,014,096.56 199,202
167,336,013.64 11,059,237
164,940,000
1.0145 67
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90

2020 12

3 500,900, 008.66
4 282,743,389.56
1 165,359,368.58

4 77,159,813,841
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2018 2017
2,776,023 302,115 2,997,260 326,192

108,904 11,852 394,868 42,973

2,884,927 313,967 3,392,128 369, 165

(2,009,880) (218,735)  (2,274,337) (247,516)

875,047 95,231 1,117,791 121,649

875,047 95,231 1,117,791 121,649

11 750,000 81,623 750,000 81,623
125,047 13,609 367,791 40,027

875,047 95,231 1,117,791 121,649

2019 30
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2018 2017
3,563,356 387,800 3,709,443 403,699
3,563,356 387,800 3,709,443 403,699
(3,303,296) (359,498)  (3,173,393) (345, 360)
251,597 27,381 (137,917) (15,010)
511,657 55,684 398,133 43,329
14 2 16 2
(4,415) (480) (3,374) (367)
(4,401) (479) (3,358) (365)
507,256 55,205 394,775 42,963
507,256 55,205 394,775 42,963
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1Q EQ
2018 12 31
2017 750,000 81,623 1,473,016 160,308 2,223,016 241,931
394,775 42,963 394,775 42,963
394,775 42,963 394,775 42,963
(1,500,000) (163,245) (1,500,000)  (163,245)
(1,500,000) (163,245) (1,500,000) (163,245)
2017 12 31 750,000 81,623 367,791 40,027 1,117,791 121,649
2018 750,000 81,623 367,791 40,027 1,117,791 121,649
507,256 55,205 507,256 55,205
507,256 55,205 507,256 55,205
(750,000)  (81,623)  (750,000)  (81,623)
(750,000)  (81,623) (750,000)  (81,623)
2018 12 31 750,000 81,623 125,047 13,609 875,047 95,231
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2018 2017
12 468,437 50,980 1,592,589 173,321
468,437 50,980 1,592,589 173,321

14 2 16 2

14 2 16 2

(4,415) (480) (3.374) (367)

(750,000) (81,623)  (1,500,000) (163,245)

(754,415) (82,103)  (1,503,374) (163,612)

(285,964) (31,121) 89,231 9,711

394,868 42,973 305,637 33,262

108,904 11,852 394,868 42,973

108,904 11,852 394,868 42,973
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)
)
2018 2017
(251,597) 137,917
5,417 32,500
2018 2017 12 31 10 EQ
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2018 2017
986,165 1,290,550
986,165 1,290,550
@
2018 2017
14 16
14 16
()
2018 2017
(4,415) (3,374)
(4,415) (3,374)
©
2018 2017
14 16
(4,415) (3.374)
(4,401) (3.358)

2035
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2018 2017
317,110 356,159
2,458,913 2,632,851
8,250
2,776,023 2,997,260

2018 2017
2,007,320 2,268,663
2,560 5,674

2,009,880 2,274,337

133/202



10

11

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018 2018 2017 2017
317,110 356,159
2,458,913 2,641,101
108,904 394,868
2,884,927 3,392,128
(2,560) (5,674)
(2,007,320) (2,268,663)
(2,009, 880) (2,274,337)
2018 2017
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

750,000

750,000 750,000
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12
@)
2018 2017
507,256 394,775
4,401 3,358
511,657 398,133
221,237 545,350
(264,457) 649,106
468,437 1,592,589
(b)
2018 2017
(288,519) 74,201
2,555 15,030
394,868 305,637
12 31 108,904 394,868
©
2018 2018 12 31
394,868 (288,519) 2,555 108,904
394,868 (288,519) 2,555 108,904
13
2017 12 31 2016
25
2018 18 10
EQ

10 EQ

14
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102 33.1

15
2019 25 10 EQ

1Q EQ

16
10 EQ

2018 18 10 EQ
100 10 EQ

75008 68

2018 12 31
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Year ended 31 December 2018

Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2018
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Note 2018 2017
Us$ Uss$
Current assets
Debtors 8 2,776,023 2,997,260
Cash at bank and in hand 108,904 394,868
2,884,927 3,392,128
nggltors amounts falling due within one 9 (2,009,880) (2,274,337)
Net current assets 875,047 1,117,791
Net assets 875,047 1,117,791
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 11 750,000 750,000
Retained earnings 125,047 367,791
Total equity 875,047 1,117,791

The notes on pages 9 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 5 to 15 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 30 April

2019 and signed for on its behalf by:

Director

Director
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Year ended 31 December 2018

Statement of comprehensive income
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2018 2017
Note Us$ Us$
Turnover 3,563,356 3,709,443
Cost of sales - -
Gross Profit 3,563,356 3,709,443
Administrative expenses (3,303,296) (3,173,393)
Other operating gains/(losses) 251,597 (137,917)
Operating profit 4 511,657 398,133
Interest receivable and similar income 6a 14 16
Interest payable and similar charges 6b (4,415) (3,374)
Net interest expense 6C (4,401) (3,358)
PI’OfIF on ordinary activities before 507,256 394,775
taxation
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 7 - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 507,256 394,775

All activities relate to continuing operations.

The notes on pages 9 to 15 form part of these financial statements.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Year ended 31 December 2018

Statement of changes in equity

Called up share
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Retained

capital earnings Total
us$ Us$ Uss$
Balance at 1 January 2017 750,000 1,473,016 2,223,016
Profit for the year - 394,775 394,775
Total comprehensive income for the year - 394,775 394,775
Dividends - (1,500,000) (1,500,000)
Total transactions with owners,
recognised directly in equity B (1,500,000) (1,500,000)
Balance as at 31 December 2017 750,000 367,791 1,117,791
Balance at 1 January 2018 750,000 367,791 1,117,791
Profit for the year - 507,256 507,256
Total comprehensive income for the year - 507,256 507,256
Dividends - (750,000) (750,000)
Total transactions with owners,
recognised directly in equity B (750,000) (750,000)
Balance as at 31 December 2018 750,000 125,047 875,047
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Year ended 31 December 2018

Statement of cash flows
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2018 2017

Note US$ Us$
Net cash from operating activities 12 468,437 1,592,589
Net cash generated from operating activities 468,437 1,592,589
Cash flow from investing activities
Interest received 14 16
Net cash from investing activities 14 16
Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid (4,415) (3,374)
Dividends paid (750,000) (1,500,000)
Net cash used in financing activities (754,415) (1,503,374)
Net_(decrease)/ increase in cash and cash (285,964) 89,231
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 394,868 305,637
of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 108,904 394,868
Cash and cash equivalents consists of:
Cash at bank and in hand 108,904 394,868

The notes on pages 9 to 15 form part of these financial statements.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

1 Summary of compliance

The individual financial statements of 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as Moore
Management (Bermuda) Limited) (the* Company” ) have been prepared in compliance with United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, “ The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland” (* FRS 102" ).

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated. The company has adopted FRS 102 in these financial statements.

(a) Basis of preparation
These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the recognition of certain financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Company accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed
innote 3.

The Company has early adopted the amendments of FRS102 as a result of the triennial review, which
are effective from 1 January 2019.

(b) Consolidation
Following the sale of 100% of the shareholding in 1Q EQ Holdings (Group I0M) Limited (formerly
known as First Names Holdings Limited), the previous ultimate parent, to 1Q EQ (FNG) Netherlands
B. V. (formerly known as SGG (FNG) Netherlands B.V.), the Company is controlled by FCPI Astorg V,
and its results are included within the consolidated financial statements of Saphilux Sarl.

These financial statements are the Company®s separate financial statements.

1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Foreign currency

(i) Functional and presentational currency
The Company*"s functional and presentational currency is United States Dol lars.

(ii) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the spot
exchange rate at the dates of the transactions.

At each period end foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate. Non-
monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of
the transaction and non-monetary 1tems measured at fair value are measured using the exchange
rate when fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions and from the
translation at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement within‘ Other operating
(losses)/gains.*

(d) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable in respect of
services rendered from the provision of administration, corporate management, trustee services
together with ancillary services, net of any discounts and rebates allowed by the Company, and
value added taxes. Revenue is recognised on an accruals basis, with deferral of any cash received
in advance. Deferred income is released to the income statement over the period to which it
relates.

(1) Management recharge income/expense

Management recharges are calculated based on the services provided and costs incurred by/from
subsidiaries and other group entities during the year.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(i1) Management fees

Management fees are received from the investment funds under management as compensation for the
management services provided by the Company. Management fees vary from 0.0175% per quarter to
0.2% per quarter of either the product of the initial unit price and the number of units in issue
at aValuation Day coinciding with a Dealing Day, or of the Net Asset Value (all as defined in the
Offering Memoranda and/or Appendices of the relevant investment funds) for all funds. In some
cases these management fees are subject to a minimum and/or an additional fixed fee also exists.

) Consultancy fees

Consultancy fees are received from the investment funds under management for services provided
by the Company relating to the set up or termination of an investment fund or sub fund. Such fees
are determined on a case by case basis.

(e) Administrative expenses

Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis and included within operating expenditure.

(i) Management charge

Under the terms of a Group Services Agreement, a management charge is paid to 1Q EQ Group
Services (Jersey) Limited (formerly known as Moore Group Services Limited), a related party, as
compensation for certain management services provided to the Company. The management charge is
presented in the profit and loss account within operating costs.

() Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligationas a

result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the

obligation; and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(g9) Financial instruments

The company has chosen to adopt the Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial

instruments.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Financial assets
Basic financial assets, including trade and other receivables and cash and bank balances, are
initially recognised at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing
transaction, where the transaction is measured at the present value of the future receipts
discounted at a market rate of interest.

Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

At the end of each reporting period financial assets measured at amortised cost are assessed for
objective evidence of impairment. 1T an asset is impaired the impairment loss is the difference
between the carrying amount and the present value of the estimated cash flows discounted at the
asset"s original effective interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised in profitor loss.

I there is decrease in the impairment loss arising from an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the impairment is reversed. The reversal is such that the current carrying
amount does not exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not
previously been recognised. The impairment reversal is recognised in the income statement.

Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire or are settled, or (b) substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of
the asset are transferred to another party or (c) despite having retained some significant risks
and rewards of ownership, control of the asset has been transferred to another party who has the
practical ability to unilaterally sell the asset to an unrelated third party without imposing
additional restrictions.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2018

2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(i1) Financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, included trade and other payables, and amounts owed to group
undertakings are initially recognised at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes
a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the present value of the
future payments (net of directly attributable issue costs) discounted at the market rate of
interest. Issue costs are recognised in the income statement over the term of the debt on an
effective interest rate basis. Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method.

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. 1T not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities. Trade payables are recognised initially at transaction price and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is when the
contractual obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts presented on the financial
statements when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognition amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

(h) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new ordinary shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(i) Distributions to equity holders

Dividends and other distributions to the Company®s shareholders are recognised as a liability in
the financial statements in the period in which the dividends and other distributions are approved
by the shareholders. These amounts are recognised in the statement of changes in equity.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Related party transactions
The Company discloses transactions with related parties which are not whol ly owned within the same
Group. Where appropriate, transactions of a similar nature are aggregated unless, in the opinion
of the directors, separate disclosure is necessary to understand the effect of the transactions on
the Company financial statements.

3 Critical accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty

Estimates and judgements are continual ly evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

(a) Key accounting estimates and assumptions
The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

(i) Accrued income
Accrued income is made up of fees accrued to the balance sheet date but yet to be billed which are
deemed to be recoverable. Judgement is used by management to assess the recoverability.

(ii) Provisions

Provisions are made up of debtors which are not deemed to be recoverable. Judgement is used by
management to assess the recoverability of debtors.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

4 Operating profit

2018 2017
US$ Us$

Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting):
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses (251,597) 137,917
Directors fees 5,417 32,500

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 the audit fee of the Company was borne by 1Q EQ Group
Management (Isle of Man) Limited (formerly known as First Names Management Limited), an associated
company .

5 Employees and directors

Key management compensation

Key management includes the directors and members of senior management. The compensation paid or
payable by the Company or other affiliated companies to key management for employee services is
shown below:

2018 2017
Us$ Us$
Salaries and other short term benefits 986,165 1,290,550
986,165 1,290,550
6 Net interest expense
(a) Interest received and similar income
2018 2017
Us$ Us$
Bank interest receivable 14 16

Total interest receivable and similar income 14 16
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

6 Net interest expense (continued)

(b) Interest payable and similar charges

2018 2017

US$ Us$
Other (4,415) (3,374)
Total interest expense on financial liabilities (4,415) (3,374)

(c) Net interest expense

2018 2017

US$ Us$

Interest receivable and similar income 14 16
Interest payable and similar charges (4,415) (3,374)
Net interest expense (4,401) (3,358)

7 Taxationon profit onordinary activities

Under current Bermuda laws, the Company is not required to pay any taxes in Bermuda on either income
or capital gains. The Company has received an undertaking from the Minister of Finance in Bermuda
exempting it from any such taxes at least until the year 2035.

8 Debtors
2018 2017
Us$ USs$
Trade debtors and accrued income 317,110 356,159
Amounts owed by group undertakings 2,458,913 2,632,851
Prepayments - 8,250
2,776,023 2,997,260

Amounts due from group companies are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and
are repayable on demand.
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9 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
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2018 2017

us$ USss$

Amounts owed to group undertakings 2,007,320 2,268,663
Accruals and deferred income 2,560 5,674
2,009,880 2,274,337

Amounts due to group companies are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and are

repayable on demand.

10 Financial instruments

The company has the fol lowing Financial instruments:

2018 2018 2017 2017
Uss$ Us$ Uss$ Uss$
Financial assets that are debt
instruments measured at
amortised cost
Trade receivables 317,110 356,159
Other receivables 2,458,913 2,641,101
Cash and cash equivalents 108,904 394,868
2,884,927 3,392,128
Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost
Accruals and deferred income (2,560) (5,674)
Amounts owed to group (2,007,320) (2,268, 663)

undertakings

(2,009, 880) (2,274,337)
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

11 Share capital

2018 2017
us$ USss$
Authorised,
1,000,000 common shares of US$1 each 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued
750,000 common shares of US$1 each 750,000 750,000

12 Notes to the statement of cash flows

a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash from operating activities

2018 2017

Us$ Uss$

Profit for the financial year 507,256 394,775

Adjustments for:

Net interest expense 4,401 3,358

Operating profit 511,657 398,133
Working capital movements:

Decrease in debtors and prepayments 221,237 545,350

(Decrease)/increase in payables (264,457) 649,106

Cash flow from operating activities 468,437 1,592,589
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

12 Notes to the statement of cash flows (continued)

b) Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds

2018 2017

Us$ Us$

(Decrease)/increase in cash in the year (288,519) 74,201

Translation difference 2,555 15,030

Net funds at 1 January 394,868 305,637

Net funds at 31 December 108,904 394,868
¢) Analysis of change in net funds

At1l Cash Exchange 31 December

January 2018 flows movements 2018

Us$ Uss Uss USs$

Cash at bank 394,868 (288,519) 2,555 108,904

Total 394,868 (288,519) 2,555 108,904

13 Commitments

As at 31 December 2017 the Company"s share capital had a charge over it, granted by the Company®s then
ultimate holding company shareholders, in favour of GLAS Trust Corporation Limited as Security
Agent on behal T of the Secured Parties, inorder to provide security for a Facility Agreement which
had been entered into on 25 May 2016 in relation to the Group”s previous bank facilities.

On 18 July 2018, the Company"s previous ultimate controlling party sold its holding in the Company®s
previous ultimate holding company, 1Q EQ Holdings (Group 10M) Limited (formerly known as First Names
Holdings Limited), to 1Q EQ (FNG) Netherlands B.V. (formerly known as SGG (FNG) Netherlands B.V.)
and at this time the charge over the Company*"s share was released as part of the transaction.

14 Related party transactions

Transactions with other wholly owned subsidiaries within the Group are not disclosed as the Company
has taken advantage of the exemption in section 33.1A of FRS102.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

17

15

Subsequent events

On 25 March 2019 the SGG Group re-branded to 1Q EQ Group and the majority of the entity names in the
group have been changed. The Company has changed its name to 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited.

Controlling parties

The Company*®s immediate parent undertaking is 1Q EQ Group Holdco (Jersey) Limited (formerly known as
Moore Group Limited), a company incorporated in Jersey

On 18 July 2018, 100% of the shareholding in 1Q EQ Holdings (Group I10M) Limited (formerly known as
First Names Holdings Limited), the previous ultimate parent, was sold to 1Q EQ (FNG) Netherlands
B.V. (formerly known as SGG (FNG) Netherlands B_.V.). Following the acquisition, the ultimate
controlling party is FCPI Astorg V, a French closed ended collective investment scheme in which no
individual investor hold a controlling interest. The scheme is managed by Astorg Partners, a Societe
par actions simplifiee incorporated and existing under the laws of France, having its registered
office at 68 Rue du Faubourg Saint-Honore, 75008 Paris.

As at 31 December 2018, the ultimate holding company into which the results are consolidated is
Saphilux Sarl (a Luxembourg entity). The ultimate controlling party is FCPI AstorgV, a French
closed ended collective investment scheme inwhich no individual investor hold a controlling
interest.
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2019 30 2018 30
3,093,877 336,707 3,311,341 360,373
150,064 16,331 230,729 25,110
3,243,941 353,038 3,542,070 385,483
(719,341) (78,286) (540,518) (58,825)
2,524,600 274,752 3,001,552 326,659
2,524,600 274,752 3,001,552 326,659
750,000 81,623 750,000 81,623
1,774,600 193,130 2,251,552 245,036
2,524,600 274,752 3,001,552 326,659
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30
2019 1 1 2018 1 1
2019 6 30 2018 6 30
1,467,746 159,735 1,775,044 193,178
1,467,746 159,735 1,775,044 193,178
(13,798) (1,502) (16,995) (1,850)
197,249 21,467 127,943 13,924
1,651,197 179,700 1,885,992 205,253
1 0 11 1
(1,645) (179) (2,242) (244)
(1,644) (179) (2,231) (243)
1,649,553 179,521 1,883,761 205,010
1,649,553 179,521 1,883,761 205,010
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1Q EQ
2019 6 30
2018 1 1 750,000 81,623 367,791 40,027 1,117,791 121,649
2018 6 30
- - 1,883,761 205,010 1,883,761 205,010
- - 1,883,761 205,010 1,883,761 205,010
2018 6 30 750,000 81,623 2,251,552 245,036 3,001,552 326,659
2018 12 31
- - (1,376,505)  (149,805) (1,376,505)  (149,805)
- - (1,376,505)  (149,805) (1,376,505)  (149,805)
- - (750,000)  (81,623)  (750,000)  (81,623)
- - (750,000)  (81,623)  (750,000)  (81,623)
2018 12 31 750,000 81,623 125,047 13,609 875,047 95,231
2019 1 1 750,000 81,623 125,047 13,609 875,047 95,231
2019 6 30
- - 1,649,553 179,521 1,649,553 179,521
- - 1,649,553 179,521 1,649,553 179,521
2019 6 30 750,000 81,623 1,774,600 193,130 2,524,600 274,752
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2019 30 2018 30

45,442 4,945 (168,792) (18,370)
45,442 4,945 (168,792) (18,370)

1 0 11 1

1 0 11 1
(1,645) (179) (2,242) (244)
(1,645) (179) (2,242) (244)
43,798 4,767 (171,023) (18,612)

108,904 11,852 394,868 42,973

(2.638) (287) 6,884 749

150,064 16,331 230,729 25,110

150,064 16,331 230,729 25,110
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2019 2018
(197,249) (127,943)
- 5,417
2019 2018 12 31 1Q EQ
@
2019 2018
11
11
(b)
2019 2018
(1,645) (2,242)
(1,645) (2,242)
©
2019 2018
1 11
(1,645) (2,242)
(1,644) (2,231)
2035
2019 2018
303,450 331,567
2,787,132 2,976,637
3,295 3,137
3,093,877 3,311,341
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2019 2018
713,339 530,469
6,002 10,049
719,341 540,518
2019 2018
303,450 331,567
2,790,427 2,979,774
150,064 230,729
3,243,941 3,542,070
(6,002) (10,049)
(713,339) (530, 469)
(719,341) (540,518)
2019 2018
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
750,000 750,000 750,000

162/202



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

11.
@)
2019 2018
1,649,553 1,883,761
1,644 2,231
2,638 (6,884)
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()
2019 2018
43,798 (171,023)
(2,638) 6,884
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©
2019 2019
11 6 30
108,904 43,798 (2,638) 150,064
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12.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Trustee

Philosophic 2 Investment Trust - Bond Plus Fund Linked to the Performance of

Winton 15-10 (AUD)

(A series trust of an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a Master Trust Deed and

Supplemental Trust Deed under the laws of the Cayman Islands)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Philosophic 2 Investment Trust - Bond Plus Fund
Linked to the Performance of Winton 15-10 (AUD) (the “ Series Trust” ) which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 30 November 2019, and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and

notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Series Trust as at 30 November 2019 and its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’ s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Series
Trust in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

Other information consists of the Management and Administration information. Management is

responsible for the other information.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have

nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Trustee for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust’
s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to

liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Trustee is responsible for overseeing the Series Trust’ s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume

responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust’ s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’ s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust’ s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Trustee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

Ernst & Young Ltd.
8 April 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR™S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 1Q EQ MANAGEMENT BERMUDA LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS
MOORE MANAGEMENT (BERMUDA) LIMITED)

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of 10 EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)
(the* Company” ) as at 31 December 2018, and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising
FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lIreland"”

(“ FRS 102" ).

What we have audited
The Company*"s financial statements comprise:

the balance sheet as at 31 December 2018;

the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ ISAs” ).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“ IESBA Code” ). We have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all
the information included in the Directors”™ report and financial statements but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor®s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR™S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 1Q EQ MANAGEMENT BERMUDA LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS
MOORE MANAGEMENT (BERMUDA) LIMITED) (CONTINUED)

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS
102 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Company®s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with I1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company®s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors® use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company"s
ability to continue as a going concern. ITf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor®s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR™S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 1Q EQ MANAGEMENT BERMUDA LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS
MOORE MANAGEMENT (BERMUDA) LIMITED) (CONTINUED)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the members as a body
and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility
for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose
hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Cl LLP
Chartered Accountants

Jersey, Channel Islands

1 May 2019
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